(3s.) **v. 2025 (43)** : 1–18. ISSN-0037-8712 doi:10.5269/bspm.

Multi-Objective Inventory Model Incorporating Shortage Cost and Delayed Replenishment With Diverse Fuzzy Number Applications Using C++ Programming Language

Singaravelu Nandhini and Jeevanantham Jayanthi

ABSTRACT: Today's supply chains face many problems, especially when it comes to managing inventory. Delays in getting supplies, sudden changes in customer demand, and the high cost of running out of stock make planning difficult. Most traditional models use fixed values, which don't work well when things are uncertain. Although fuzzy logic has been used to handle uncertainty, many studies only use simple fuzzy numbers, which don't fully capture the complexity of real-life situations. This study introduces an improved inventory model that considers both shortage costs and delays in restocking. It uses four types of fuzzy numbers trapezoidal, pentagonal, hexagonal, and decagonal to show different levels of uncertainty more accurately. The model is programmed in C++ and uses a special method called graded mean integration to turn fuzzy numbers into useful values. Results show that while trapezoidal numbers produce basic results, pentagonal and hexagonal numbers are better especially hexagonal, which provides the lowest overall cost. The model also deals with uncertainty in how long restocking takes. The article examines a fuzzy inventory model using trapezoidal, pentagonal, and hexagonal fuzzy numbers. It finds trapezoidal fuzzy numbers ineffective for cost efficiency, while pentagonal and hexagonal fuzzy numbers outperform crisp models, enhancing inventory management decision-making.

Key Words: Fuzzification; Economic order quantity; Shortage cost; Delayed replenishment; Defuzzification; Graded mean integration Method.

Contents

1	Introduction	2
2	Preliminaries	4
	2.1 Fuzziness	4
	2.2 Fuzzy Numbers	4
	2.3 Trapezoidal Fuzzy Numbers	5
	2.4 Pentagonal Fuzzy Numbers	5
	2.5 Hexagonal Fuzzy Numbers	5
3	Model Description	5
	3.1 Notations	5
	3.2 Assumptions	6
4	Model Formulation	7
_	4.1 Proposed Inventory Model in Crisp Sense	7
	4.2 Proposed Model in the Fuzzy Sense	7
	1.2 Troposed freder in the Pattay Source	•
5	Numerical Example	8
	5.1 Numerical Example in Crisp Sense	8
	5.2 Numerical Example in the Fuzzy Sense	9
	5.2.1 Trapezoidal Fuzzy Numbers	9
	5.2.2 Pentagonal Fuzzy Numbers	9
	5.2.3 Hexagonal Fuzzy Numbers	10
6		10
	6.1 Sensitivity Analysis for Crisp Value	10
	6.2 Sensitivity Analysis for Trapezoidal Fuzzy Numbers	11
	6.3 Sensitivity Analysis for Pentagonal Fuzzy Numbers	11
	6.4 Sensitivity Analysis for Hexagonal Fuzzy Numbers	11
7	Conclusion	14

2010 Mathematics Subject Classification: 35B40, 35L70. Submitted July 19, 2025. Published September 18, 2025

1. Introduction

In modern production environments, effective inventory control plays a critical role in ensuring operational efficiency and customer satisfaction. One of the central challenges in inventory management is achieving an optimal balance. Holding excessive inventory increases storage and handling costs, while insufficient inventory can lead to shortages, production delays, and reduced customer service levels. Particularly in discrete production systems, the overarching objective is to minimize the long-term average inventory cost by making well-informed, data-driven decisions.

Fuzzy set theory has increasingly been recognized as a valuable approach for improving inventory modeling, particularly in situations where uncertainty is a defining characteristic. Unlike traditional crisp models, fuzzy approaches allow for a more flexible and realistic representation of the vagueness inherent in real-world supply chain systems. Several studies have built upon this foundation to enhance the reliability and efficiency of inventory-related decision-making. For example, Abdullah Ali et al. [1] developed a multi-objective optimization model aimed at promoting sustainability in green supply chains, specifically within the domains of inventory control and production planning. Adrian Ban and Lucian Coroianu [2] studied the basic math behind fuzzy logic by looking at how some operators behave when using trapezoidal fuzzy numbers, which adds to our understanding of fuzzy modeling. In a real-world example, Ata Allah Taleizadeh et al. [3] created models for sustainable economic production quantities that take into account shortage costs, showing how to handle challenges in inventory management. These contributions underscore the growing relevance of fuzzy set theory in creating more adaptable and responsive inventory systems. Chen and Wang [4] introduced a fuzzy inventory system that includes backordering, using the function principle to manage uncertainty more effectively. Building on this, Chang [5] modified the traditional EOQ model by integrating fuzzy set theory to handle situations involving imperfect-quality items. Later, Chang et al. [6] extended this concept further by developing a fuzzy reorder point model that also incorporates backorder quantities. Cheng [7] contributed by formulating an EOQ model where production costs depend on demand levels and account for flaws in the production process. In another important study, Chinmay Saha et al. [8] applied fuzzy optimization techniques, along with differential evolution algorithms, to enhance inventory control for defective items. Further contributions to this area include the work of Chakraborty et al. [9], who developed a two-warehouse inventory model considering partial backlogging and deterioration under inflationary pressure. Lee and Yao [10] proposed a fuzzy EOQ model suitable for systems without backordering. Similarly, Hsu and Hsu [11] developed an EOQ framework that considers a wide range of real-world issues, including imperfect items, inspection errors, shortages, and returns. Kazemi et al. [12] included fuzzy logic in both the factors and choices of an inventory model that allows backorders, while Aslam et al. [13] created a nonlinear fuzzy supply chain model that takes into account uncertain lead times using the Takagi-Sugeno method. Multi-objective optimization has also gained attention in recent studies. Mishra et al. [14] explored inventory modeling using a variety of fuzzy techniques to address multiple conflicting goals. Chaudhary et al. [15] introduced a sustainable inventory model tailored to defective items under fuzzy conditions. Salameh and Jaber [16] presented a production quantity model that accounts for imperfect-quality goods. Suvetha et al. [17] proposed a three-stage sustainable inventory system incorporating trapezoidal demand patterns and time-sensitive holding costs. Meanwhile, Sanni and Chukwu [18] addressed the deterioration of inventory items through an EOQ model that considers Weibull distribution and ramp-type demand. The mathematical treatment of fuzzy numbers has also played a vital role in refining such models. Mandal and Mandal [19] explored the structural properties of pentagonal fuzzy numbers and demonstrated their applicability in solving fuzzy equations. Sangeetha and Parimala [20] applied hexagonal fuzzy numbers in solving fuzzy game problems, highlighting their flexibility. Tinarelli [21] provided helpful details about the ongoing challenges in inventory control theory, while Yao and Wu [22] presented methods for ranking fuzzy numbers using the decomposition principle and signed distance techniques.

Building on the strengths of these previous works, the present study proposes a comprehensive multiobjective production-inventory model that takes into account both shortage-related costs and delayed replenishment under uncertain conditions. To capture the nuances of uncertainty more precisely, this model employs trapezoidal, pentagonal, and hexagonal fuzzy numbers to represent key parameters. The graded mean integration method is used to simplify fuzzy numbers, creating a decision-support system that is both precise and flexible for complicated inventory situations.

RELATED WORK

There are several real-world issues related to optimizing a ratio of two functions. There are several examples in the fields of economics, medicine, manufacturing, finance, inventories, corporate planning, and water resource management. Fractional programming problems are the name given to these optimization issues. Furthermore, it is known as a Linear Fractional Programming Problem (LFPP) if the functions involved are linear. Optimizing output/employee, nurse/patient, cost/student, profit/cost, debt/equity, etc. are a few examples of LFPP. Numerous methods have been developed over time to identify the best LFPP solution. The variable transformation approach was developed by Charnes and Cooper [23], who took into account an additional variable to solve LFPP. LFPP was resolved by Tantawy [24] by applying the conjugate gradient method. The parametric approach is examined by Almogy and Levin [25] to solve a sum of fractional objectives. Since Dantzig developed the simplex method [26], numerous researchers have proposed various approaches to solve LFPP [27–30]. For fractional programming problems involving absolute value functions, the solution strategy has been covered by Chadha [31]. Das et al. [32] introduced a novel approach to solving LFPP with absolute value functions. Borza et al. [33] used Charnes and Cooper's [23] variable transformation method to solve LFPP with the objective coefficients as intervals.

Early on in the decision-making process, prediction is crucial. One of the prerequisites for sound decision-making is accurate prediction, which also plays a crucial guiding role in the process. Decisionmaking errors frequently have a more severe impact on the industrial sector because of its quick, electric, violent, destructive, far-reaching, and other real-life features. Making a reasonable decision is essential to the practical problem because the success or failure of the current and future practical problems is directly correlated with the correctness of the decision. To better advise the practical situation and create the appropriate practical strategy, fuzzy numbers are crucial for describing confusing facts. A powerful mathematical tool that effectively models such circumstances is the Fuzzy Linear Fractional Programming Problem (FLFPP), which combines LFPP and fuzzy numbers. The concept of fuzzy sets was first presented by Zadeh [34] in 1965, and it has since been widely applied in many other fields. Bellman and Zadeh's [35] incorporation of fuzziness into decision-making issues led to the increasing popularity of fuzzy sets in the field of mathematical optimization. Tanaka et al. [36] created the first Linear Programming Problem (LPP) using fuzzy parameters. Buckley and Feuring [37] introduced a type of fully fuzzy LPP where all variables and parameters take the form of fuzzy numbers. Ganesan and Veeramani [38] created a solution to the fuzzy LPP using symmetric trapezoidal fuzzy numbers. A lexicographic method for solving fully fuzzy LPP with trapezoidal fuzzy numbers was presented by Das et al. [39]. A ranking function approach was presented by Das et al. [40] for the solution of fuzzy LPP with Triangular Fuzzy Numbers (TFNs). Safaei [41] used the decomposition method to suggest an FLFPP solution. Using a simplex method and a denominator objective limitation technique, Pandian and Jayalakshmi [42] resolved LFPP. Luhandjula [43] used fuzzy techniques to tackle the Multi-Objective Linear Fractional Programming Problem (MOLFPP). A fully fuzzy LFPP solution was put forth by Pop and Stancu-Minasian [44], who accounted for the variables and parameters as TFNs. Das et al. [45] provided a method for solving FLFPP in which the upper, middle, and lower limits were found by converting the FLFPP into an analogous tri-objective LFPP. The ranking method established for TFNs served as the foundation for the comparison of the outcomes. Das et al. [46] introduced a unique method for solving FLFPP using multi-objective LPP. Stanojevic and Stanojevic [47] developed a method for solving LFPP with fuzzy parameters in the objective function. Deb and De [48] solved the completely fuzzy LFPP using the graded means integration representation technique.

One important computational technique that aids in identifying the best solution for multi-objective programming problems which typically contain conflicting objectives is goal programming (GP) [49]. GP applied to an optimization problem with fuzzy parameters is known as fuzzy goal programming, or FGP. GP is frequently used to discover the answer to several optimization issues. Pal et al. [50] developed a GP-based approach for multi-objective FLFPP. The FLFPP solution was derived by Veeramani and Sumathi [51] using fuzzy mathematical programming. The FLFPP is solved using fuzzy mathematical programming and transformed into an analogous deterministic MOLFPP. An FGP approach was created by Pramanik et al. [52] to solve multiobjective linear plus LFPP problems. To get the best solution,

Veeramani and Sumathi [53] transformed FLFPP into a triobjective LFPP and then used FGP. Using the Taylor series approximation, Pramanik et al. [54] used FGP to solve a linear fractional bi-level decentralized programming problem. To address linear fractional bi-level multi-objective programming problems, Dey et al. [55] used the TOPSIS technique with FGP. Pramanik and Roy [56] applied the FGP approach to a multi-objective fuzzy transportation problem. Pramanik and Roy [57] employed the FGP approach to tackle the multi-level programming challenge. Multi-objective linear and LFPP linearization strategies have been researched by Borza et al. [58]. Edalatpanah has tackled a multidimensional solution to the fuzzy LPP [59]. Sheikhi and Ebadi [60] have devised a new approach to solve linear interval fractional transportation issues. Veeramani et al. [61] utilized the neutrosophic GP strategy to solve the multi-objective fractional transportation issue. Khalifa [62] proposed a signed distance for interval-valued fuzzy numbers. Shirneshan et al. [63] proposed a stochastic programming method to solve the shift scheduling issue that caretakers encounter. A novel model known as LR-type totally Pythagorean fuzzy LPPs with equality constraints was introduced by Akram et al. [64]. In order to establish an integrated supply chain, Arabzad et al. [65] created an FGP model to address challenges in allocating linear facility sites. A novel approach to simulating zero-base budgeting in a fuzzy environment has been presented by El-Morsy [66]. In order to solve cost-efficiency issues, Khalifa and Yousif [67] ordered piecewise quadratic fuzzy quotients linearly.

Assuming that the parameters are TFNs, this study proposes an FGP-based approach for solving FLFPP. First, the FLFPP is transformed into an equivalent deterministic LFPP with three objectives by applying Zadeh's [68] extension principle. The TFN and centroid of triangle technique attributes are used to eliminate the fuzziness in the constraints. The variable transformation approach determines the maximum and minimum values of each objective function by solving it separately. The objectives' hazy aims are then created using these values. Each objective goal's associated membership function is then developed; because these functions are nonlinear, they are then linearized to prevent computational issues. Lastly, FGP is used to minimize the negative deviational variables in order to achieve the highest value of the membership goals. Two real-world examples illustrate the usefulness and effectiveness of the suggested approach, and the outcomes are contrasted with those of other approaches.

MOTIVATION OF THIS STUDY

The paper investigates a fuzzy inventory model using trapezoidal, pentagonal, and hexagonal fuzzy numbers to represent costs. It finds that trapezoidal fuzzy numbers are ineffective in minimizing expenses, while pentagonal and hexagonal fuzzy numbers outperform the crisp model in cost efficiency. The study emphasizes the benefits of hexagonal fuzzy numbers for improved inventory management decision-making.

2. Preliminaries

Definition 2.1 Give χ a collection of all the values. Then the fuzzy set $\widetilde{A} = \{(x, \mu_A(x))/x \in \chi\}$ of χ is established by its function within the membership $\mu_A : \chi \to [0, 1]$.

2.1. Fuzziness

When an observed variable becomes fuzzy in the actual world, there are two common situations. Technical measurement conditions make it impossible to measure the response variable precisely in the first case. Consequently, in order to show the required tolerance to measurement mistakes, data can only be expressed in linguistic terms rather than directly using accurate (non-fuzzy) statistics. In the second case, the variable's answer is provided in linguistic forms that are not numerical, such a farmer's report about his produce or an expert's linguistic report. The data in both cases can be represented as a country of fuzzy sets for the purpose of experiment analysis. Since the values derived from experiment results are frequently fuzzy, fuzzy sets theory must be employed to model and manage the results from experiments in many applicable fields. Since its introduction to the scientific community by Zadeh (1965), the fuzzy sets theory has been applied by several individuals in a wide range of scientific fields.

2.2. Fuzzy Numbers

A fuzzy number \widetilde{A} is a fuzzy set on a real line R such that

- 1. $\mu_A(x_0)$ is piecewise continuous
- 2. There exists at least one $x_0 \in \mathbb{R}$ with $\mu_{\widetilde{A}}(x_0) = 1$
- 3. A must be normal and convex

2.3. Trapezoidal Fuzzy Numbers

 $\widetilde{A} = \{a, b, c, d\}$ is defined by trapezoidal fuzzy numbers, where a, b, c, and d are real numbers. The membership function $\mu_{\widetilde{A}}(x)$ of these numbers is as follows:

$$\mu_{\widetilde{A}}(x) = \begin{cases} 0 & ; for \ x < a \\ \frac{(x-a)}{(b-c)} & ; for \ a \le x \le b \\ 1 & ; for \ b \le x \le c \\ \frac{(d-x)}{(d-c)} & ; for \ c \le x \le d \\ 0 & ; for \ x > d \end{cases}$$

2.4. Pentagonal Fuzzy Numbers

The pentagonal fuzzy number is defined as $\widetilde{A} = \{a, b, c, d, e\}$, where all a, b, c, d, e are real numbers, and its membership function $\mu_{\widetilde{A}}(x)$ is given below:

$$\mu_{\widetilde{A}}(x) = \begin{cases} 0 & ; for \ x < a \\ \frac{(x-a)}{(b-a)} & ; for \ a \le x \le b \\ \frac{(x-b)}{(c-b)} & ; for \ b \le x \le c \\ 1 & ; for \ x = c \\ \frac{(d-x)}{(d-c)} & ; for \ c \le x \le d \\ \frac{(e-x)}{(e-d)} & ; for \ d \le x \le e \\ 0 & ; for \ x > e \end{cases}$$

2.5. Hexagonal Fuzzy Numbers

Hexagonal fuzzy numbers are defined as $\widetilde{A} = \{a_1, a_2, a_3, a_4, a_5, a_6\}$, where all $a_1, a_2, a_3, a_4, a_5, a_6$ are real numbers, and their membership function $\mu_{\widetilde{A}}(x)$ is given below:

$$\mu_{\widetilde{A}}(x) = \begin{cases} 0 & ; x < a_1 \\ \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{x - a_1}{a_2 - a_1} \right) & ; for \ a_1 \le x \le a_2 \\ \frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{x - a_2}{a_3 - a_2} \right) & ; for \ a_2 \le x \le a_3 \\ 1 & ; for \ a_3 \le x \le a_4 \\ 1 - \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{a_5 - x}{a_5 - a_4} \right) & ; for \ a_4 \le x \le a_5 \\ \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{a_6 - x}{a_6 - a_5} \right) & ; for \ a_5 \le x \le a_6 \\ 0 & ; for \ x > a_6 \end{cases}$$

3. Model Description

3.1. Notations

p = purchase cost

k = storage cost for one unit per day

b = backorder cost for one unit per day

c = cost of placing as order

d = total demand over the planning time period [0, T]

T = scheduling time period

q = order quantity per cycle

s = shortage quantity per cycle

 $\alpha = \text{screening cost per unit}$

 $\beta = \text{reworking cost per unit}$

 $\theta = \text{percentage of defective items}$

TC = total annual cost

Z = order level

 $\widetilde{p} = \text{fuzzy purchase cost}$

 \widetilde{k} = storage fuzzy cost for one unit per day

 $\tilde{b} = \text{backorder fuzzy cost for one unit per day}$

 $\tilde{c} = \text{fuzzy cost of placing as order}$

 \tilde{d} = total fuzzy demand over the planning time period [0, T]

 \widetilde{T} = fuzzy scheduling time period

 $\tilde{q} = \text{fuzzy order quantity per cycle}$

 \widetilde{s} = fuzzy shortage quantity per cycle

 $\tilde{\alpha}$ = fuzzy screening cost per unit

 β = fuzzy reworking cost per unit

TC =fuzzy total annual cost

 \tilde{z} = fuzzy order level

3.2. Assumptions

- Lead time is allowed.
- Shortages are allowed.
- The function of the form $R(L) = aL^{-b}$, where a and b are real constants, ties the lead time crash cost to the lead time. a > 0, $0 < b \le 0.5$,
- The storage cost is considered.
- The back ordering cost is considered.
- The ordering cost is considered.
- The only delay in the screening procedure is time; the buyer getsthe additional expense.
- The storage cost (k), backordering cost (b), ordering cost (c), demand (d), shortage cost (s), screening cost (α) and reworking cost (β) are taken as trapezoidal, pentagonal and hexagonal fuzzy numbers.
- The screening cost and reworking cost are constants.
- q is the order quality per cycle.
- The length of the plan, expressed in days, is represented by L.
- tq is the cycle length or scheduling period.
- At the start of each cycle, only one order is produced, and the entire lot is delivered in a single batch.
- The goals are to reduce the overall yearly cost that is pertinent.

4. Model Formulation

4.1. Proposed Inventory Model in Crisp Sense

From the above assumptions and notations, we can determine the total annual cost for the inventory model, which includes shortages and lead time in a crisp environment. Over the planning period [0, T], the total crisp cost is determined by

TC(T) = Storage cost + Shortage cost + Ordering cost + Lead time crash cost + Screening cost +Reworking cost.

$$TC(T) = \left\lceil \frac{kz^2}{2dT} \right\rceil + \frac{c}{T} + s(dT - z)^2 + \frac{R(L)}{T} + \alpha dT + \beta \theta dT \tag{4.1}$$

$$TC(T) = \frac{ksdT}{2(k+s)} + \frac{c}{T} + \frac{aL^{-b}}{T} + \alpha dT + \beta \theta dT$$

$$\tag{4.2}$$

From (4.1),

$$TC(q) = \frac{kz^2}{2q} + \frac{cd}{q} + s(q-z)^2 + \frac{d}{qaL^{-b}} + \alpha q + \beta \theta q$$
 (4.3)

Where $z = \frac{sdT}{k+s}$ and q = dTFrom (4.2),

$$TC(q) = \frac{ksq}{2(k+s)} + \frac{cd}{q} + \frac{d}{q}aL^{-b} + \alpha q + \beta \theta q \tag{4.4}$$

Partially differentiating (4.2) with relation to 'T', yield

$$\frac{\partial TC}{\partial T} = \frac{ksq}{2(k+s)} - \frac{C}{T^2} - \frac{aL^{-b}}{T} + \alpha q + \beta \theta q \tag{4.5}$$

Finding the first-order partial derivative with regard to 'T' and equating it to zero will yield the ideal values of Q and TC. (i.e.,) $\frac{\partial TC}{\partial T} = 0$ gives Optimum Time Period

$$T = \sqrt{\frac{2(c + aL^{-b})(k + s)}{ksd + 2\alpha d(k + s) + 2\beta \theta d(k + s)}}$$
(4.6)

Optimum order quantity

$$q = dT = \sqrt{\frac{2(c + aL^{-b})(k + s)}{ks + 2\alpha(k + s) + 2\beta\theta(k + s)}}$$
(4.7)

Optimal Total Annual Cost

$$TC = \sqrt{2d(c + aL^{-b})\left[\frac{ks}{k+s} + 2\alpha + 2\beta\theta\right]}$$
 (4.8)

4.2. Proposed Model in the Fuzzy Sense

From the above notations and assumptions, we obtain the total annual cost for the inventory model with shortages and lead time in a fuzzy environment. The planning period [0, T] fuzzy total cost is determined by

 \widetilde{TC} (\widetilde{T}) = Storage fuzzy cost + Shortage cost + Ordering cost + Lead time crashing cost + Screeningcost + Reworking cost.

$$\widetilde{TC}(\widetilde{T}) = \left[\frac{\widetilde{k}\widetilde{z}^2}{2\widetilde{d}\widetilde{T}}\right] + \frac{\widetilde{C}}{\widetilde{T}} + \widetilde{S}(\widetilde{d}\widetilde{T} - \widetilde{Z})^2 + \widetilde{\alpha}\widetilde{d}\widetilde{T} + \widetilde{\beta}\theta\widetilde{d}\widetilde{T}$$
(4.9)

$$\widetilde{TC}(\widetilde{T}) = \frac{\widetilde{k}\widetilde{s}\widetilde{d}\widetilde{T}}{2(\widetilde{k}+\widetilde{s})} + \frac{\widetilde{C}}{\widetilde{T}} + \frac{\widetilde{a}L^{-b}}{L} + \widetilde{\alpha}\widetilde{d}\widetilde{T} + \widetilde{\beta}\theta\widetilde{T}$$

$$(4.10)$$

From (4.9),

$$\widetilde{TC}(\widetilde{q}) = \frac{\widetilde{k}\widetilde{z}^2}{2\widetilde{q}} + \frac{\widetilde{c}\widetilde{d}}{\widetilde{q}} + \widetilde{s}(\widetilde{q} - \widetilde{z})^2 + \frac{\widetilde{d}}{\widetilde{q}}aL^{-b} + \widetilde{\alpha}\widetilde{q} + \widetilde{\beta}\theta\widetilde{q}$$

$$(4.11)$$

where $\widetilde{z} = \frac{\widetilde{s}\widetilde{d}\widetilde{T}}{\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s}} and \widetilde{q} = \widetilde{d}\widetilde{T}$

$$\widetilde{TC}(\widetilde{q}) = \frac{\widetilde{k}\widetilde{s}\widetilde{q}}{2(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s})} + \frac{\widetilde{c}\widetilde{d}}{\widetilde{q}} + \frac{\widetilde{d}}{\widetilde{q}}aL^{-b} + \widetilde{\alpha}\widetilde{q} + \widetilde{\beta}\theta\widetilde{q}$$

$$(4.12)$$

By partially differentiating (10) with respect to T, we obtain

$$\frac{\partial \widetilde{TC}}{\partial \widetilde{T}} = \frac{\widetilde{k}\widetilde{s}\widetilde{q}}{2(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s})} - \frac{\widetilde{c}}{\widetilde{T}^2} - \frac{aL^{-b}}{\widetilde{T}} + \widetilde{\alpha}\widetilde{q} + \widetilde{\beta}\theta\widetilde{q}$$

$$\tag{4.13}$$

The first-order partial derivative with respect \tilde{T} can be found and equated to zero in order to get the optimal \widetilde{q} and $\widetilde{T}\widetilde{c}$.

(i.e.,) $\frac{\partial \tilde{T} \hat{c}}{\partial \tilde{T}} = 0$ gives **Fuzzy Optimum Time Period**

$$\widetilde{T} = \sqrt{\frac{2\left(\widetilde{C} + aL^{-b}\right)\left(\widetilde{K} + \widetilde{S}\right)}{\widetilde{K}\widetilde{S}\widetilde{d} + 2\widetilde{\alpha}\widetilde{d}\left(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s}\right) + 2\widetilde{\beta}\theta\widetilde{d}(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s})}}$$

$$(4.14)$$

Fuzzy Optimum order quantity

$$\widetilde{q} = \sqrt{\frac{2\widetilde{d}\left(\widetilde{C} + aL^{-b}\right)\left(\widetilde{K} + \widetilde{S}\right)}{\widetilde{K}\widetilde{S} + 2\widetilde{\alpha}\left(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s}\right) + 2\widetilde{\beta}\theta(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s})}}$$
(4.15)

Fuzzy Optimal Total Annual Cost

$$\widetilde{TC} = \sqrt{2\widetilde{d}\left(\widetilde{C} + aL^{-b}\right)\left[\frac{\widetilde{k}\widetilde{s}}{\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s}} + 2\widetilde{\alpha} + 2\widetilde{\beta}\theta\right]}$$
(4.16)

5. Numerical Example

5.1. Numerical Example in Crisp Sense

An item's yearly demand Rs. 500 units/year, its annual inventory holding cost is Rs.25 per unit, and making an order costs Rs.50/unit, and the shortage cost is Rs.20/unit/year. If there are 10% defective items, then the duplicate cost for the defective items is Rs.5/unit, and the screening cost is Rs.2/unit. L=0.5, a=1, b=0.1 and the optimum time period, optimal economic order quantity and total annual cost are determined.

Let d = Rs.500 units/year

k = Rs.25 units/year

c = Rs.50 units/year

s = Rs.20 units/year

 $\theta = 10\%$

 α = Rs.5 units

 $\beta = \text{Rs.2units}$

L = 0.5

a = 1

b = 0.1

Optimum Time Period

$$T = \sqrt{\frac{2(c + aL^{-b})(k + s)}{ksd + 2\alpha d(k + s) + 2\beta \theta d(k + s)}} = 0.1$$
 (5.1)

Optimum order quantity

$$q = \sqrt{\frac{2(c + aL^{-b})(k + s)}{ks + 2\alpha(k + s) + 2\beta\theta(k + s)}} = 48.7258$$
(5.2)

Optimal Total Annual Cost

$$TC = \sqrt{2d(c + aL^{-b})\left[\frac{ks}{k+s} + 2\alpha + 2\beta\theta\right]} = 1048.1463$$
 (5.3)

5.2. Numerical Example in the Fuzzy Sense

5.2.1. Trapezoidal Fuzzy Numbers. Let $\widetilde{d}=(480,\,500,\,540,\,560)$ units / year

 $\tilde{k} = (20, 25, 35, 40)$ units / year

 $\tilde{c} = (40, 50, 70, 80)$ units / year

 $\tilde{s} = (15, 20, 30, 35) \text{ units / year}$

 $\theta = 10\%$

 $\tilde{\alpha} = (4, 5, 7, 8) / \text{unit}$

 $\widetilde{\beta} = (1, 2, 4, 5) / \text{unit}$

L = 0.5

a = 1

b = 0.1

Trapezoidal fuzzy optimum time period

$$\widetilde{T} = \sqrt{\frac{2\left(\widetilde{C} + aL^{-b}\right)\left(\widetilde{K} + \widetilde{S}\right)}{\widetilde{K}\widetilde{S}\widetilde{d} + 2\widetilde{\alpha}\widetilde{d}\left(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s}\right) + 2\widetilde{\beta}\theta\widetilde{\widetilde{d}(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s})}}} = 0.0946$$
(5.4)

Trapezoidal fuzzy optimum order quantity

$$\widetilde{q} = \sqrt{\frac{2\widetilde{d}\left(\widetilde{C} + aL^{-b}\right)\left(\widetilde{K} + \widetilde{S}\right)}{\widetilde{K}\widetilde{S} + 2\widetilde{\alpha}\left(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s}\right) + 2\widetilde{\beta}\theta(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s})}} = 49.20$$
(5.5)

Trapezoidal fuzzy optimal total annual cost

$$\widetilde{TC} = \sqrt{2\widetilde{d}\left(\widetilde{C} + aL^{-b}\right)\left[\frac{\widetilde{k}\widetilde{s}}{\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s}} + 2\widetilde{\alpha} + 2\widetilde{\beta}\theta\right]} = 1290.88$$
 (5.6)

5.2.2. Pentagonal Fuzzy Numbers. Let $\tilde{d} = (480, 490, 500, 510, 520)$

 $\tilde{k} = (23, 25, 27, 29, 31)$ units / year

 $\tilde{c} = (40, 45, 50, 55, 60)$ units / year

 $\tilde{s} = (18, 20, 22, 24, 26)$ units / year

 $\theta = 10\%$

 $\tilde{\alpha} = (4, 5, 6, 7, 8) / \text{unit}$

 $\widetilde{\beta} = (1, 2, 3, 4, 5) / \text{unit}$

$$L = 0.5$$

 $a = 1$
 $b = 0.1$

Pentagonal fuzzy Optimal Time period

$$\widetilde{T} = \sqrt{\frac{2\left(\widetilde{C} + aL^{-b}\right)\left(\widetilde{K} + \widetilde{S}\right)}{\widetilde{K}\widetilde{S}\widetilde{d} + 2\widetilde{\alpha}\widetilde{d}\left(\widetilde{K} + \widetilde{S}\right) + 2\widetilde{\beta}\theta\widetilde{\widetilde{d}(\widetilde{K} + \widetilde{S})}}} = 0.0909$$
(5.7)

Pentagonal fuzzy optimum order quantity

$$\widetilde{q} = \sqrt{\frac{2\widetilde{d}\left(\widetilde{C} + aL^{-b}\right)\left(\widetilde{K} + \widetilde{S}\right)}{\widetilde{K}\widetilde{S} + 2\widetilde{\alpha}\left(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s}\right) + 2\widetilde{\beta}\theta(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s})}} = 45.45$$
(5.8)

Pentagonal fuzzy optimal total annual cost

$$\widetilde{TC} = \sqrt{2\widetilde{d}\left(\widetilde{C} + aL^{-b}\right)\left[\frac{\widetilde{k}\check{s}}{\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s}} + 2\widetilde{\alpha} + 2\widetilde{\beta}\theta\right]} = 1123.66$$
 (5.9)

5.2.3. Hexagonal Fuzzy Numbers. Let $\tilde{d} = (470, 480, 490, 500, 510, 520)$

 $\widetilde{k} = (21, 23, 25, 27, 29, 31) \text{ units/year}$

 $\tilde{c} = (35, 40, 45, 50, 55, 60)$ units / year

 $\tilde{s} = (16, 18, 20, 22, 24, 26)$ units / year

 $\theta = 10\%$

 $\tilde{\alpha} = (3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8) / \text{unit}$

 $\widetilde{\beta} = (1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6) / \text{unit}$

L = 0.5

a = 1

b = 0.1

Hexagonal fuzzy Optimal Time period

$$\widetilde{T} = \sqrt{\frac{2\left(\widetilde{C} + aL^{-b}\right)\left(\widetilde{K} + \widetilde{S}\right)}{\widetilde{K}\widetilde{S}\widetilde{d} + 2\widetilde{\alpha}\widetilde{d}\left(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s}\right) + 2\widetilde{\beta}\theta\widetilde{\widetilde{d}(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s})}}} = 0.0917$$
(5.10)

Hexagonal fuzzy optimum order quantity

$$\widetilde{q} = \sqrt{\frac{2\widetilde{d}\left(\widetilde{C} + aL^{-b}\right)\left(\widetilde{K} + \widetilde{S}\right)}{\widetilde{K}\widetilde{S} + 2\widetilde{\alpha}\left(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s}\right) + 2\widetilde{\beta}\theta(\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s})}} = 45.41$$
(5.11)

Hexagonal fuzzy optimal total annual cost

$$\widetilde{TC} = \sqrt{2\widetilde{d}\left(\widetilde{C} + aL^{-b}\right)\left[\frac{\widetilde{k}\widetilde{s}}{\widetilde{k} + \widetilde{s}} + 2\widetilde{\alpha} + 2\widetilde{\beta}\theta\right]} = 1058.87$$
(5.12)

6. Sensitivity Analysis

The following tables are shows all values

6.1. Sensitivity Analysis for Crisp Value

D	Т	q	TC
500	0.0974	48.70	1052.48
600	0.0889	53.34	1146.87
700	0.0824	57.68	1238.25
800	0.0770	61.60	1325.01
900	0.0726	65.34	1409.21
1000	0.0689	68.90	1482.46

Table 1:

6.2. Sensitivity Analysis for Trapezoidal Fuzzy Numbers

\tilde{d}	$ ilde{T}$	$ ilde{q}$	\tilde{TC}
(480, 500, 540, 560)	0.0946	49.20	1290.88
(580, 600, 640, 660)	0.0867	53.73	1409.56
(680, 700, 740, 760)	0.0804	57.90	1518.98
(780, 800, 840, 860)	0.0735	61.179	1621.04
(880, 900, 940, 960)	0.0711	65.45	1717.04
(980, 1000, 1040,1060)	0.0646	66.70	1799.78

Table 2:

6.3. Sensitivity Analysis for Pentagonal Fuzzy Numbers

\widetilde{d}	\tilde{T}	$ ilde{q}$	\tilde{TC}
(480, 490, 500, 510, 520)	0.0909	45.45	1290.88
(580, 590, 600, 610, 620)	0.0830	49.79	1230.91
(680, 690, 700, 710, 720)	0.0768	53.78	1329.54
(780, 790, 800, 810, 820)	0.0719	57.49	1421.33
(880, 890, 900, 910,920)	0.0678	60.98	1507.55
(980, 990, 1000, 1010, 1020)	0.0615	61.54	1574.93

Table 3:

6.4. Sensitivity Analysis for Hexagonal Fuzzy Numbers

$ec{ ilde{d}}$	$ ilde{T}$	$ ilde{q}$	\tilde{TC}
(470, 480, 490, 500, 510, 520)	0.0917	45.41	1058.87
(570, 580, 590, 600, 610, 620)	0.0837	49.79	1160.92
(670, 680, 690, 700, 710, 720)	0.0777	54.01	1249.10
(770, 780, 790, 800, 810, 820)	0.0724	57.55	1341.92
(870, 880, 890, 900, 910, 920)	0.0682	61.06	1423.82
(970, 980, 990, 1000, 1010, 1020)	0.0619	61.98	1484.41

Table 4:

Program 6.1: "Defuzzification of Hexagonal Fuzzy Numbers Using GMI for Calculating Optimum Time, Order Quantity, and Total Cost in Inventory Models"

```
#include ¡iostream.h;
#include ¡conio.h;
#include ¡math.h;
```

```
// Function to defuzzify hexagonal fuzzy numbers
float defuzzify (float a1, float a2, float a3, float a4, float a5, float a6)
  return (a1 + 2*a2 + 2*a3 + 2*a4 + 2*a5 + a6) / 10.0:
void main()
clrscr():
   // Given hexagonal fuzzy numbers
  float d = defuzzify(470, 480, 490, 500, 510, 520);
  float k = defuzzify(21, 23, 25, 27, 29, 31);
  float c = defuzzify(35, 40, 45, 50, 55, 60);
  float s = defuzzify(16, 18, 20, 22, 24, 26);
  float alpha = defuzzify(3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8):
  float beta = defuzzify(1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6);
   // Constants
  float theta = 0.10;
  float a = 1.0;
  float b = 0.1:
  float L = 0.5;
// Lead time crash cost R(L)
  float R = a * pow(L, -b);
// Optimum Time Period T
  float numerator_T = 2 * (c + R) * (k + s);
  float denominator_T = k * s * d + 2 * alpha * d * (k + s) + 2 * beta * theta * d * (k + s):
  float T = sqrt(numerator_T / denominator_T);
// Optimum Order Quantity q = d * T
  float numerator_q = 2 * (c + R) * (k + s);
  float denominator_q = k * s + 2 * alpha * (k + s) + 2 * beta * theta * (k + s);
  float \ q = sqrt(numerator_q / denominator_q);
   q = d * T;
// Optimum Total Cost TC
  float TC = sqrt(2 * d * (c + R) * (k * s / (k + s) + 2 * alpha + 2 * beta * theta));
cout j; "Defuzzified Demand (d):" jj d jj "units" jj endl;
cout << "Defuzzified Storage Cost (k):" << k << "units/year" << endl;
cout << "Defuzzified Ordering Cost (c):" << c << "units/year" << endl;
cout << "Defuzzified Shortage Cost (s):" << s << "units/year" << endl;
cout << "Defuzzified Screening Cost (alpha):" << alpha << endl;
cout<< "Defuzzified Reworking Cost (beta):" << beta << endl;
cout << "Lead Time Crash Cost R(L):" << R << endl;
cout << "Optimum Time Period (T):" << T << endl;
cout << "Optimum Order Quantity (q):" << q << endl;
cout << "Total Annual Cost (TC):" << TC << endl;
getch();
OUTPUT:
Defuzzified Demand (d): 495 units
Defuzzified Storage Cost (k): 26 units / year
Defuzzified Ordering Cost (c): 47.5 units / year
Defuzzified Shortage Cost (s): 21 units / year
Defuzzified Screening Cost (alpha): 5.5
Defuzzified Reworking Cost (beta): 3.5
Lead Time Crash Cost R(L): 1.0717
```

```
Optimum Time Period (T): 0.0917
Optimum Order Quantity (q): 45.41
Total Annual Cost (TC): 1058.87
```

Program 6.2: Comparative Analysis of Trapezoidal, Pentagonal, and Hexagonal Fuzzy Numbers in Inventory Optimization Using Graded Mean Integration defuzzification-Based Evaluation of Optimum Time, Order Quantity, and Total Cost.

```
#include <iostream.h>
    \#include < conio.h >
    \#include < math.h >
   // GMI Functions
   float qmiTrapezoidal(float a1, float a2, float a3, float a4)
       return (a1 + 2*a2 + 2*a3 + a4) / 6.0:
   float gmiPentagonal(float a1, float a2, float a3, float a4, float a5)
       return (a1 + 2*a2 + 3*a3 + 2*a4 + a5) / 9.0:
   float qmiHexagonal(float a1, float a2, float a3, float a4, float a5, float a6)
       return (a1 + 2*a2 + 2*a3 + 2*a4 + 2*a5 + a6) / 10.0;
   // Function to compute T, q, TC
   void computeAndDisplay(char* label, float d, float k, float c, float s, float alpha, float beta, float theta,
float a, float b, float L)
       float R = a * pow(L, -b);
       float numerator_T = 2 * (c + R) * (k + s);
       float denominator_T = k * s * d + 2 * alpha * d * (k + s) + 2 * beta * theta * d * (k + s);
       float T = sqrt(numerator_T / denominator_T);
       float numerator_q = 2 * (c + R) * (k + s);
       float denominator_q = k * s + 2 * alpha * (k + s) + 2 * beta * theta * (k + s);
       float q = d * T;
       float TC = sqrt(2 * d * (c + R) * (k * s / (k + s) + 2 * alpha + 2 * beta * theta));
   cout << "\n---" << label << "Fuzzy Number ---";
   cout << " \setminus nOptimum Time Period (T): " << T:
   cout << " \setminus nOptimum \ Order \ Quantity \ (q):" << q;
   cout << \text{"} \land Total \ Annual \ Cost \ (TC):" << TC << \text{"} \land n";
   void main()
   clrscr();
       float theta = 0.10;
       float a = 1.0:
       float b = 0.1;
       float L = 0.5;
       // Trapezoidal inputs (4 values each)
       float d_{-}t = qmiTrapezoidal(480, 500, 540, 560);
       float k_{-}t = gmiTrapezoidal(20, 25, 35, 40);
       float c_{-}t = qmiTrapezoidal(40, 50, 70, 80);
       float s_{-}t = gmiTrapezoidal(15, 20, 30, 35);
       float \ alpha_{-}t = gmiTrapezoidal(4, 5, 7, 8);
       float\ beta_t = gmiTrapezoidal(1, 2, 4, 5);
```

```
// Pentagonal inputs (5 values each)
   float d_p = qmiPentagonal(480, 490, 500, 510, 520);
   float k_p = gmiPentagonal(23, 25, 27, 29, 31);
   float c_p = qmiPentagonal(40, 45, 50, 55, 60):
   float s_p = qmiPentagonal(18, 20, 22, 24, 26);
   float \ alpha_p = gmiPentagonal(4, 5, 6, 7, 8);
   float\ beta_p = gmiPentagonal(1, 2, 3, 4, 5);
   // Hexagonal inputs (6 values each)
   float d_h = qmiHexagonal(470, 480, 490, 500, 510, 520);
   float k_h = gmiHexagonal(21, 23, 25, 27, 29, 31);
   float c_h = gmiHexagonal(35, 40, 45, 50, 55, 60);
   float s_h = qmiHexagonal(16, 18, 20, 22, 24, 26);
   float \ alpha_h = gmiHexagonal(3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8);
   float\ beta\_h = gmiHexagonal(1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6);
   // Compute and display results for each
compute And Display("Trapezoidal", d_t, k_t, c_t, s_t, alpha_t, beta_t, theta, a, b, L);
compute\ And\ Display("Pentagonal",\ d\_p,\ k\_p,\ c\_p,\ s\_p,\ alpha\_p,\ beta\_p,\ theta,\ a,b,\ L);
compute And Display("Hexagonal", d_h, k_h, c_h, s_h, alpha_h, beta_h, theta, a, b, L);
qetch();
OUTPUT:
-- Trapezoidal Fuzzy Number ---
Optimum Time Period (T): 0.0946
Optimum Order Quantity (q): 49.20
Total Annual Cost (TC): 1290.88
--- Pentagonal Fuzzy Number ---
Optimum Time Period (T): 0.0909
Optimum Order Quantity (q): 45.45
Total Annual Cost (TC): 1123.66
--- Hexagonal Fuzzy Number ---
Optimum Time Period (T): 0.0917
Optimum Order Quantity (q): 45.41
Total Annual Cost (TC): 1058.87
```

7. Conclusion

This paper explores a fuzzy inventory model accounting for shortages and constant demand, utilizing trapezoidal, pentagonal and hexagonal fuzzy numbers to represent carrying, backordering, and ordering costs. The results of the investigation show that trapezoidal fuzzy numbers are ineffective at minimizing overall expenses. In contrast, both pentagonal and hexagonal fuzzy numbers outperform the crisp model in cost efficiency, with hexagonal fuzzy numbers yielding the most favorable results. The numerical examples substantiate these findings, highlighting the advantages of adopting hexagonal fuzzy numbers for improved decision-making in inventory management.

DATA AVAILABILITY

This work is based on non-empirical analysis.

DECLARATION OF COMPETING INTEREST

The authors state that none of the cited in this study publication may have been impacted by any known conflicting financial interests or personal connections.

References

- 1. Abdullah Ali H., Ahmadini Umar Muhammad Modibbo., Ali Akbar Shaikh., & Irfan Ali (2021), "Multi objective optimization modelling of sustainable green supply chain in inventory and production management". Alexandria Engineering Journal Volume 60, Issue 6, pp 5129-5146 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aej.2021.03.075
- 2. Adrian I. Ban., & Lucian C. Coroianu (2011). "Discontinuity of the trapezoidal fuzzy number-valued operators preserving core". Computers & Mathematics with applications Volume 62, Issue 8, pp 3103-3110 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.camwa.2011.08.023
- 3. Ata Allah Taleizadeh., Vahid Reza Soleymanfar., & Kannan Govindan., (2018). "Sustainable economic production quantity models for inventory systems with shortage". Journal of Cleaner Production. Volume 174, pp -1011-1020. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2017.10.222
- 4. Chen S. H., Wang C.C., & Arthur Ramer., (1996). "Backorder Fuzzy Inventory Model under function principle". Information Sciences Volume 95, Issue 1-2, pp-71-79. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0020-0255(96)00085-0
- 5. Chang H.C., (2004)". An application of fuzzy sets theory to the EOQ model with imperfect quality items". Computers & Operations Research. Volume 31, Issue 12,pp-2079-2092. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0305-0548(03)00166-7
- 6. Chang S.C., Yao J.S.,& Lee H. M.(1998). "Economic reorder pointfor fuzzy backorder quantity". European Journal of Operational Research. Volume 109, Issue 1, pp-183-202. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0377-2217(97)00069-6
- 7. Cheng T.C.E. (1991) "An economic order quantity model with demand-dependent unit production cost and imperfect production processes". IIE Transaction (Inst. Ind. Eng.). Volume 23, Issue 1, pp- 23-28 https://doi.org/10.1080/07408179108963838
- 8. Chinmay Saha., Dipak Kumar Jana., & Avijit Duary., (2023), "Enhancing production inventory management for imperfect items using fuzzy optimization strategies and Differential Evolution (DE) algorithms". Franklin Open.https://www.sciencedirect.com/journal/franklin-open/vol/5/suppl/C, Volume 5, Article 100051 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.fraope.2023.100051
- 9. Dipankar Chakraborty., Dipak Kumar Jana., & Tapan Kumar Roy., (2018) "Two-warehouse partial backlogging inventory model with ramp type demand rate, three-parameter Weibull distribution deterioration under inflation and permissible delay in payments". Computer & Industrial Engineering". Volume123, pp. 157-179. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cie.2018.06.022
- 10. Huey-Ming Lee., Jing-Shing Yao., (2005). "Economic Order Quantity in Fuzzy Sense for Inventory without Backorder model". Fuzzy Sets and Systems. Volume 105 Issue 1, pp-13-31 https://doi.org/10.1016/S0165-0114(97)00227-3
- 11. Jia-Tzer Hsu & Lie-Fern Hsu.,(2013). An EOQ model with imperfect quality items, inspection errors, shortage backordering, and sales returns". https://www.sciencedirect.com/journal/international-journal-of-production-economics,International Journal of Production Economics, Volume 143, Issue 1, pp- 162-170. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijpe.2012.12.025
- 12. Kazemi N., Ehsani, E., & Jaber, M.Y., (2010), "An inventory with backorders with fuzzy parameters and decision variables," International Journal of Approximate Reasoning. Volume 51, Issue 8, pp 964-972.https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijar.2010.07.001
- 13. Muhammad ShamroozAslam., HazratBilal., Shahab S. Band., & Peiman Ghasemi., (2024), "Modeling of nonlinear supply chain management with lead-times based on Takagi-Sugeno fuzzy control model". Engineering Applications of Artificial Intelligence Volume 133, Part C, 108131 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.engappai.2024.108131
- 14. MishraU., WalivR.H., & UmapH.P., (2019). "Optimizing of Multi-objective Inventory Model by Different Fuzzy Techniques". International Journal Applied and Computational Mathematics. Volume 5,Article number 136 https://doi.org/10.1007/s40819-019-0721-0
- 15. Riju Chaudhary., Mandeepa Mittal., & Mahesh Kumar Jayaswal., (2023), "A sustainable inventory model for defective items under fuzzy environment". Decision Analytics Journal. Volume 7 Article 100207 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.dajour.2023.100207
- 16. SalamehM.K., & Jaber M.Y., (2000). "Economic production quantity model for items with imperfect quality". International Journal of Production Economics. volume 64, Issue 1-3 pp-59-64. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0925-5273(99)00044-4
- 17. Suvetha R., Rangarajan, K., & Rajadurai, P., (2024). "A sustainable three-stage production inventory model with trapezoidal demand and time-dependent holding cost". Results in Control and Optimization Volume 17, 100493. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.rico.2024.100493
- 18. Sanni S.S.,& Chukwu W.I.E.,(2013). "An economic order quantity model for items with three-parameter Weibull distribution deterioration, ramp-type demand and shortages". Applied Mathematical Modelling. Volume 37, Issur 23, pp: 9698-9706. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.apm.2013.05.017
- 19. Sankar Prasad Mondal., Manimohan Mandal., (2017), "Pentagonal fuzzy number, its properties and application in fuzzy equation". Future computing and Informatics Journal.Volume 2, Issue 2, pp 110-117. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.fcij.2017.09.001
- 20. SangeethaK., & ParimalaM., (2021), "On solving a fuzzy game problem using hexagonal fuzzy numbers", Materials today: proceedings.volume 47, part 9, pp 2102 -2106. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.matpr.2021.04.591

- 21. Urgeletti Tinarelli G., (1983), "Inventory Control Models and Problems". European Journal of Operational Research. Volume14, Issue 1, pp 1-12. https://doi.org/10.1016/0377-2217(83)90283-7
- 22. Yao, J.S., Wu, K., (2000), "Ranking Fuzzy Numbers based on Decomposition principle and signed distance", Fuzzy Sets and Systems. Volume, 116, Issue 2, pp 283-319. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0165-0114(98)00122-5
- Charnes, A., & Cooper, W. W. (1962). Programming with linear fractional functionals. Naval research logistics quarterly, 9(3-4), 181–186.https://doi.org/10.1002/nav.3800090303
- 24. Tantawy, S. F. (2008). A new procedure for solving linear fractional programming problems. Mathematical and computer modelling, 48(5–6), 969–973. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.mcm.2007.12.007
- Almogy, Y., & Levin, O. (1971). A class of fractional programming problems. Operations research, 19(1), 57–67. https://doi.org/10.1287/opre.19.1.57
- Dantzig, G. B. (2016). Linear programming and extensions. In Linear programming and extensions. Princeton University Press.
- 27. Gilmore, P. C., & Gomory, R. E. (1963). A linear programming approach to the cutting stock problem- Part II. Operations research, 11(6), 863–888. https://doi.org/10.1287/opre.11.6.863
- Martos, B., Andrew, & Whinston, V. (1964). Hyperbolic programming. Naval research logistics quarterly, 11(2), 135–155.
- Swarup, K. (1965). Linear fractional functionals programming. Operations research, 13(6), 1029–1036. https://doi.org/10.1287/opre.13.6.1029
- 30. Sharma, J. K., Gupta, A. K., & Gupta, M. P. (1980). Extension of simplex technique for solving fractional programming problems. Indian journal of pure and applied mathematics, 11, 961–968.
- 31. Chadha, S. S. (2002). Fractional programming with absolute-value functions. European journal of operational research, 141(1), 233–238. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0377-2217(01)00262-4
- 32. Das, S. K., Edalatpanah, S. A., & Mandal, T. (2019). A new method for solving linear fractional programming problem with absolute value functions. International journal of operational research, 36(4), 455–466. https://doi.org/10.1504/IJOR.2019.104051
- 33. Borza, M., Rambely, A. S., & Saraj, M. (2012). Solving linear fractional programming problems with interval coefficients in the objective function. A new approach. Applied mathematical sciences, 6(69), 3443–3452.
- 34. Zadeh, L. A. (1965). Fuzzy sets. Information and control, 8(3), 338-353. DOI:10.1016/S0019-9958(65)90241-X
- 35. BELLMAN RE, & ZADEH LA. (1970). Decision-making in a fuzzy environment. Management science, 17(4), B--141. DOI:10.1142/9789812819789_0004
- 36. Tanaka, H., Okuda, T., & Asai, K. (1973). Fuzzy mathematical programming. Transactions of the society of instrument and control engineers, 9(5), 607–613. https://doi.org/10.9746/sicetr1965.9.607
- 37. Buckley, J. J., & Feuring, T. (2000). Evolutionary algorithm solution to fuzzy problems: fuzzy linear programming. Fuzzy sets and systems, 109(1), 35–53. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0165-0114(98)00022-0
- 38. Ganesan, K., & Veeramani, P. (2006). Fuzzy linear programs with trapezoidal fuzzy numbers. Annals of operations research, 143, 305–315. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10479-006-7390-1%0A%0A
- 39. Das, S. K., Mandal, T., & Edalatpanah, S. A. (2017). A mathematical model for solving fully fuzzy linear programming problem with trapezoidal fuzzy numbers. Applied intelligence, 46, 509–519. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10489-016-0779-x%0A%0A
- 40. Das, S. K., Mandal, T., & Behera, D. (2019). A new approach for solving fully fuzzy linear programming problem. International journal of mathematics in operational research, 15(3), 296–309. https://doi.org/10.1504/IJMOR.2019.102074
- 41. Safaei, N. (2014). A new method for solving fully fuzzy linear fractional programming with a triangular fuzzy numbers. Applied mathematics and computational intelligence (AMCI), 3(1), 273–281.
- 42. Gupta, S., & Chakraborty, M. (1999). Fuzzy programming approach for a class of multiple objective linear fractional programming problem. Journal of fuzzy mathematics, 7, 29–34.
- 43. Luhandjula, M. K. (1984). Fuzzy approaches for multiple objective linear fractional optimization. Fuzzy sets and systems, 13(1), 11–23. https://doi.org/10.1016/0165-0114(84)90023-X
- 44. Pop, B., & Stancu-Minasian, I. (2008). A method of solving fully fuzzified linear fractional programming problems. Journal of applied mathematics and computing, 27, 227–242. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12190-008-0052-5%0A%0A
- 45. Das, S. K., Edalatpanah, S. A., & Mandal, T. (2018). A proposed model for solving fuzzy linear fractional programming problem: Numerical Point of View. Journal of computational science, 25, 367–375. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jocs.2017.12.004
- 46. Das, S. K., Mandal, T., & Edalatpanah, S. A. (2017). A new approach for solving fully fuzzy linear fractional programming problems using the multi-objective linear programming. RAIRO-operations research, 51(1), 285–297. https://doi.org/10.1051/ro/2016022

- 47. Stanojeviä, B., & Stanojeviä, M. (2013). Solving method for linear fractional optimization problem with fuzzy coefficients in the objective function. International journal of computers communications & control, 8(1), 146–152.
- 48. Deb, M., & De, P. K. (2015). Optimal solution of a fully fuzzy linear fractional programming problem by using graded mean integration representation method. Applications and applied mathematics: an international journal (AAM), 10(1), 34. https://digitalcommons.pvamu.edu/aam/vol10/iss1/34/
- 49. Charnes, A., Cooper, W. W., & Ferguson, R. O. (1955). Optimal estimation of executive compensation by linear programming. Management science, 1(2), 138–151. https://doi.org/10.1287/mnsc.1.2.138
- 50. Pal, B. B., Moitra, B. N., & Maulik, U. (2003). A goal programming procedure for fuzzy multiobjective linear fractional programming problem. Fuzzy sets and systems, 139(2), 395–405. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0165-0114(02)00374-3
- 51. Veeramani, C., & Sumathi, M. (2014). Fuzzy mathematical programming approach for solving fuzzy linear fractional programming problem. RAIRO-operations research, 48(1), 109–122. https://doi.org/10.1051/ro/2013056
- 52. Pramanik, S., Dey, P. P., & Giri, B. C. (2011). Multi-objective linear plus linear fractional programming problem based on Taylor series approximation. International journal of computer applications, 32(8), 61–68.
- 53. Veeramani, C., & Sumathi, M. (2016). A new method for solving fuzzy linear fractional programming problems. Journal of intelligent & fuzzy systems, 31(3), 1831–1843. DOI:10.3233/JIFS-15712
- 54. Pramanik, S., Dey, P. P., & Roy, T. K. (2012). Fuzzy goal programming approach to linear fractional bilevel decentralized programming problem based on Taylor series approximation. Journal of fuzzy mathematics, 20(1), 231–238.
- 55. Dey, P. P., Pramanik, S., & Giri, B. C. (2014). TOPSIS approach to linear fractional bi-level MODM problem based on fuzzy goal programming. Journal of industrial engineering international, 10, 173–184.https://doi.org/10.1007/s40092-014-0073-7%0A%0A
- 56. Pramanik, S., & Roy, T. K. (2008). Multiobjective transportation model with fuzzy parameters: priority based fuzzy goal programming approach. Journal of transportation systems engineering and information technology, 8(3), 40–48. https://doi.org/10.1016/S1570-6672(08)60023-9
- 57. Pramanik, S., & Roy, T. K. (2007). Fuzzy goal programming approach to multilevel programming problems. European journal of operational research, 176(2), 1151–1166. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ejor.2005.08.024
- 58. Borza, M., Rambely, A. S., & Edalatpanah, S. A. (2023). A linearization to the multi-objective linear plus linear fractional program. Operations research forum (Vol. 4, p. 82). Springer.
- 59. Edalatpanah, S. A. (2023). Multidimensional solution of fuzzy linear programming. Peerj computer science, 9, e1646. https://doi.org/10.7717/peerj-cs.1646
- 60. Sheikhi, A., & Ebadi, M. J. (2023). An efficient method for solving linear interval fractional transportation problems. Journal of applied research on industrial engineering. https://doi.org/10.22105/jarie.2023.402353.1550
- Veeramani, C., Edalatpanah, S. A., & Sharanya, S. (2021). Solving the multiobjective fractional transportation problem through the neutrosophic goal programming approach. Discrete dynamics in nature and society, 2021(1), 7308042. https://doi.org/10.1155/2021/7308042
- 62. Khalifa, H. A. (2022). A signed distance for (γ, δ) interval-valued fuzzy numbers to solve multi objective assignment problems with fuzzy parameters. International journal of research in industrial engineering, 11(2), 205–213. https://doi.org/10.22105/riej.2021.281055.1203
- 63. Shirneshan, H., Sadegheih, A., Hosseini-Nasab, H., & Lotfi, M. M. (2023). A two-stage stochastic programming approach for care providers shift scheduling problems. Journal of applied research on industrial engineering, 10(3), 364–380. https://doi.org/10.22105/jarie.2022.349970.1488
- 64. Akram, M., Ullah, I., Allahviranloo, T., & Edalatpanah, S. A. (2021). LR-type fully Pythagorean fuzzy linear programming problems with equality constraints. Journal of intelligent & fuzzy systems, 41(1), 1975–1992.
- 65. Arabzad, S. M., Ghorbani, M., & Ranjbar, M. J. (2017). Fuzzy goal programming for linear facility locationallocation in a supply chain; the case of steel industry. International journal of research in industrial engineering, 6(2), 90–105. https://doi.org/10.22105/riej.2017.49157
- 66. El-morsy, S. A. (2022). Optimization of fuzzy zero-base budgeting. Computational algorithms and numerical dimensions, 1(4), 147–154. https://doi.org/10.22105/cand.2022.155548
- 67. Khalifa, H. A. E.-W., & Yousif, B. A. A. (2023). Addressing cost-efficiency problems based on linear ordering of piecewise quadratic fuzzy quotients. Journal operation strategic analysisstrateg anal, 1(3), 124–130.
- 68. Zadeh, L. A. (1975). The concept of a linguistic variable and its application to approximate reasoning-II. Information sciences, 8(4), 301–357. https://doi.org/10.1016/0020-0255(75)90046-8

S.Nandhini, Research Scholar,

Department of Mathematics,

Periyar Maniammai Institute of Science and Technology,

Deemed to be University,

Thanjavur, 613403, Tamil Nadu, India.

 $E ext{-}mail\ address: }$ nandhusingeravelu@gmail.com

and

Dr.J. Jayanthi, Assistant Professor,

Department of Mathematics,

Periyar Maniammai Institute of Science and Technology,

Deemed to be University,

Thanjavur, 613403, Tamil Nadu, India.

 $E ext{-}mail\ address: jayanthij@pmu.edu}$